
Sierra County Commission 
Sierra County Commission Chambers 

1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 
Tuesday, July 15th, 2025 

AGENDA 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE ABLE TO WATCH AND LISTEN TO MEETING VIA: 
(http://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100068317226897) 

(https://www.youtube.com/@SierraCountyCommission) 

Call to Order: 10:00 AM Regular Meeting 

Roll Call: Travis Day-Chairman Amy Whitehead-Clerk 
James E. Paxon-Vice-Chair  Nance, Pato & Stout, LLC-Attorney 
Hank Hopkins-Commissioner Amber Vaughn-County Manager 

Pledge Of Allegiance 

New Mexico State Flag Pledge-I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico and the Zia symbol of perfect 
friendship among united cultures.  

Introduction of Guests 

I. Approval of Agenda:
II. Approval of Minutes:

A. Regular Meeting-June 24th, 2025
III. Public Comment: Limited to 3 Minutes
IV. Consent Agenda:

A. Resolution No. 2025-54 Accounts Payable
B. Resolution No. 2025-55 Indigent Claims
C. Indigent Burial B2025-014
D. Indigent Burial B2025-015
E. Claim of Exemption 25-002 Smith
F. Lodgers Tax Board Fund Recommendation for The Sierra County Arts Council

Pickamania
V. Presentations/reports:

A. Years of Service Awards
B. Department Reports

VI. Board of Finance:
A. June Reconciliation

VII. Old Business:
VIII. New Business:

A. Approval of Donation, Rubber Tire Roller from Sierra County Road Department to the
Village of Magdalena

IX. Contracts-Agreements-Procurements:
X. Resolutions-Ordinances-Proclamations:

http://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100068317226897


A. Resolution No. 2025-56 Authorizing the County Manager to Facilitate Participation in
Opioid Litigation Settlements, and Ratifying Prior Actions

B. Resolution No. 2025-57 End of The Year Budget Transfers
C. Resolution No. 2025-58 Budget/Line-Item Amendment Resolution to Adjust Various

Funds
D. Resolution No. 2025-59 Fourth Quarter Financial Report Ending June 30, 2025
E. Resolution No. 2025-60 A Resolution Adopting the Fiscal Year 2026 Final Budget

XI. Executive Session (Section 10-15 E thru H) :
Pending and Threatened Litigation :
A. EBID v. BOCC

XII. Open Session Actions from Executive Session:
XIII. Adjourn

Next proposed Scheduled Meeting: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, August 19th, 2025, at 10:00 AM. 
Items for the agenda must be submitted to the Sierra County Administration Office no later than 
5:00pm on the Monday the week before the meeting. 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or 
meeting, please contact the Sierra County Manager, at 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, 
New Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6215 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as 
possible.  Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible 
formats. Please contact the Sierra County Manager if a summary or other type of accessible format 
is needed. 



 

 
SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                          REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
June 24, 2025 

 
   

CALL TO ORDER:   10:00 am Regular Meeting  
 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Regular Session 
at 10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, June 24, 2025, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N Date St, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 

 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair  
 Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
  
 Clerk of Board: Amy Whitehead 
          
 County Attorney: David Pato  
           
 County Manager: Amber Vaughn 
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
   
Monica Zepeda, Josh Baker, Steve Mull-Sentinel, Patrick Flores, Keith 
Whitney, Billy Neeley, Tim Kuzdrowski, Taylor Gouhart, Patrice Love, 
Julian Marta, Eden Garcia, Chealsey Garcia, Travis Atwell, Mickey Atwell, 
Santiago Nieves,Virginia Lee, Ernie Armijo, Ray Pierce 
             

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.  
Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
A. Regular Meeting-May 20, 2025 
B. Special Meeting-June 10, 2025 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
June 24, 2025 
Page 2   

 

 
 

 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the minutes as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT: LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES 
              N/A 
         

 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A.  Resolution No. 2025-45 Accounts Payable 
B.  Resolution No. 2025-46 Indigent Claims 
C. Indigent Burial B2025-010 
D. Indigent Burial B2025-011 
E.  Indigent Burial B2025-012 
F. Indigent Burial B2025-013 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS: 
 
A.  Years of Service award 
B.  Department Reports 
C.  Patillo, Brown, & Hill LLC-Audit Report (Ray Pierce)  
      Audit went smooth, no disagreements with Management, County Records    
well maintained and processes well followed.  
 

VI. BOARD OF FINANCE: 
 

A.  May Reconciliation 
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the May Reconciliation 
as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS: 
             A: Amendment IGA between Dona Ana County and Sierra County 
 
 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
June 24, 2025 
Page 3   

 

 
 

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the Amendment as presented.  
Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS:   

 
A. Letter from Sierra County to Elephant Butte regarding the 
withdrawing from Sierra Vista Hospital JPA 
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon stated the Hospital is very healthy and doing 
very well. Rumors of closing are not true. The hospital is in a good financial 
position. 
Chair Day concurred with Vice Chair Paxon and stated he is unable to 
speculate why Elephant Butte opted to pull out of the JPA. 

 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to TABLE sending the letter to 

Elephant Butte.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes 

 
B. Donation of 38 HP Pro Desk mini desktop computers from Lea 
County OEM to Sierra County OEM. 

 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the Donation as presented.  
Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
C. New Mexico Natural Resources Coalition  
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon stated that the current guide is from 2014 and 
he recommended that we update the Natural Resource and land management 
guide using Utah’s format. Commission all agreed for VC Paxon to attend 
the meeting. 
County Manager Vaughn stated that she is working with the COG on a grant 
to update the plan. 

 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the NM Natural Resources 

Coalition as presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes 

 
D. Mexican Wolf-Ladder Ranch 
 
Chair Day stated that the Commission opposes the release of the wolf and 
requested County Attorney Pato compose a letter of protest.  



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
June 24, 2025 
Page 4   

 

 
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Mexican Wolf-Ladder 
Ranch protest as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  
Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
 

 
IX.  CONTRACT-AGREEMENTS-PROCUREMENTS 
 

A. Sierra County Fairgrounds Management Agreement 
 
Manager Vaughn stated that she needs to amend the name to Sierra County 
Fair and Livestock Expo which is required for 501 3C. 
Capital improvement requests must be to her by March 15, 2025 
Vice Chair Paxon commended Julian Marta for working on this deal and his 
leadership, honesty and for being straight forward and cooperative during 
this process. 
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Agreement (along 
with County Manager Signature) as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 
 
B. Work and Finance Plan between Sierra County and APHIS-WS 
 
Vice Chair Paxon commended Ray Pierce for being so cooperative and 
available during the audit. He is very appreciative. 
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Plan as presented.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
C. Approval of Unauthorized purchase: Registration Fee 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Unauthorized Purchase as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
D. Fiscal Agent Agreement between Sierra County and The Sierra 
County Regional Dispatch Authority 
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Agreement as presented.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
June 24, 2025 
Page 5   

 

E. Sierra County Regional Dispatch Authority JPA  
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve JPA as presented.  Commission 
Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
 

 
X. RESOLUTIONS – ORDINANCES – PROCLAMATIONS 

 
A.  Resolution No. 2025-47 CAP 26 Participation in local government road 
fund program and request for Match waiver administration by NM 
Department of Transportation  
 
B.  Resolution No. 2025-48 SB 26 Participation in Local Government Road 
fund program and request for Match waiver Administration by NM 
Department of Transportation. 
 
C.  Resolution 2025-49 SP 26 Participation in Local government Road Fund 
Program and Request for Match Waiver Administration.  
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution 2025-47, 
2025-48, and 2025-49 as presented. (One discussion, one motion)  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
D. Resolution No. 2025-50 Accepting and Approving the FY 2023-24 Audit. 
 
County Manager Vaughn stated that she has hired a Company to clean up 
fixed assets. 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 2025-50 as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
E. Resolution No. 2025-51 Supporting the incorporation of Ivermectin into 
Livestock and Wildlife feeds to combat the new world screwworm fly. 
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 2025-51 
as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
F. Resolution No. 2025-52 Recognizing Sugar Sand Road and bridge as a 
public prescriptive easement.  
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
June 24, 2025 
Page 6   

 

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 2025-52 as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
G. Resolution No. 2025-53Adopting FY 2026-2030 Infrastructure Capital 
Improvement Plan  
 
Commission Chair Day and Commission Vice Chair Paxon moved Arrey 
Recreation Facility to #5, Hillsboro Outfall Channel to #6, Divide Well Road 
to #7, and Sugar Sand Bridge Phase II to # 8 on Capital improvement Plan. 
 
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 2025-53 
with changes discussed as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED 
the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
 
 

  XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION SECTION (10-15-E THRU H): 
 
   Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to go into Executive Session for 

Personnel, Real Estate, Pending and Threatened Litigation.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Roll call vote was taken with all 
Commissioners present voting yes.   
 
            District 1 – Yes 
 District 2 – Yes 
 District 3 – Yes 
 
A. Coulter vs: Sierra County 

 
            PENDING AND THREATENED LITIGATION: 
       
            
XI. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
 

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to come back into Regular Session.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Roll call vote was taken, 
with all Commissioners present voting yes. 

 
A: Direction to Staff-Coulter vs: Sierra County 

 
 

 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT REGULAR SIERRA COUNTY 
COMMISSION MEETING:  



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
June 24, 2025 
Page 7   

 

 
The date and time of the next Regular Sierra County Commission Meeting 
has been scheduled for Tuesday July 15, 2025 at 10:00 A.M. at the Sierra 
County Commission Chambers 1712 N. Date Street Truth or Consequences, 
New Mexico. 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting. Commission Vice 
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.    
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
June 24, 2025 
Page 8   

 

 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 24th day of June 2025. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James E Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk 
 
 

   
 



   

 

 

    
     

  

 

 

  

  

 
     

          

 
 

          
 

  

          
            

          

         

            

            

   
   

  

  

 
 

     



   

 

   

  
 

   
 

  

 

 
 

   

   

   

  

   
  

 
  

   

  



 
 

 



 
   

  

  

  

  

   
 

 

  

 
  

    

   

 

   



 





  

   

 
    

 

    

 

 

    

  
 
    

   

     
 

    

   

     
     

    

    
   

  

     

    

 

     
 

    



 
 

 



 

   
 

  

   
     

  
 

   

    
    

    
  

    
  

     
  

  
  

    
  

   
  

  

   
   

      
  

   

   

  
  

    
    

   
    

  
      

   

 
   

 



   
  

  

  
  

 
 

 

  
  

 
 

   

  

     
   

  
 

  

 

    
   

    
    

 

    

 
 

   
     

 

 

  
  
  

 

  

 



 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 





   

 

 
 
 

  
  

 
   

  
          

  
  

  
          

  

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  



 
 

  
 

    
 

  

 
 

  
   

 
 

   
 

   
   

   
  

   

  

 
  

 

 

 
 

 
   

    
  

    
  

 
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

    
 

  
    

  



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



   

  



 





 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 





 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



     
  

  

 

 

  

  

    

  
    
    

 
   

   

     

     
     

  

  

     

  

    



 
 



 



  



 



 
 

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



  
  

  
    

   
   
   
   
   

    
   

      

  
 

   
   

  
  

  
  

    
 

  
  
  

  
  

  
   

   
   
   
   
   
   

   

 

   



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



    

   

  
  

  

   

   

   
    

 
 

 
 

 

    
 

    
    



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

  

  
   

       

   

  

      

 
 

 
   

     
       
     

       

       
   
   
   

       
   

       
   
   



 
 

 
 

 
 

  



 
 

  

 
 

   

 
    

 
 

      
    

     

  
 

  
  

  

 
   

    
  

 
    

 

 
  

 
      

    
  

 
  

  
   
  
  

    

  

      



  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 





  
  

  
  
  
  

   

  

  
  

  
 

  

 

 



   

  

  



 



 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Sierra County, New Mexico 

Resolution No. 2025-55 
 

Indigent Claims 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners has received Indigent Hospital and Medical 
Claim request for those persons unable to make proper restitution for Medical Services in the amount of 
$10,097.62 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Commissioners desire to provide for the equitable and 
reasonable payment of claims, and; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sierra County Board of Commissioners hereby approve 
payment to those Indigent Hospital Claims in the amount of: 
 

Sole Community Providers in the amount of $10,097.62 
 
To be deducted from the proper funds appropriated in the 2025-2026 FY Budget. July 15th, 2025 
 
      Board of County Commissioners   
      Sierra County, NM 
   
            
      TRAVIS DAY, CHAIRMAN 
 
            
Attest:      JAMES PAXON, VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
            
AMY WHITEHEAD    WILLIAM HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 
SIERRA COUNTY CLERK 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY INDIGENT HEALTH CARE 
 
 
 
 
 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Amy Whitehead 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

 
Joshua Baker 
County Sheriff 
575-894-9150 

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 

James Paxon 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Travis Day 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Amber Vaughn, County Manager 
575-894-6215 voice 575-894-9548 fax 

 

1712 N. Date, Suite D 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  2025-55 
 
 
 
CLAIMS APPROVED FOR  $10,097.62 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VENDOR#   NAME      TOTAL   AMOUNT 
         CLAIMS  
  
1200   COUNTY OF SOCORRO         1  $95.00 
5814   FEDKO EMERGENCY PHYS. NEW MEXICO      1      $0.00 
2775   LUNA COUNTY DETENTION CENTER       5      $8,604.21 
2853   MIMBRES MEMORIAL HOSPITAL       2  $670.93 
4981   PATHOLOGY CONSULTANTS OF NM        1  $31.93 
3281   SIERRA VISTA HOSPITAL         3  $695.55 
       



©IHS Source Totals Report
Issued 07/09/25 County Of Sierra

Batch Dates 07/15/2025 through 07/15/2025
For Vendor: All Vendors

Source Description Amount Billed Amount Paid

02 Jail - In House Inmate Service 8,699.21 8,699.21
04 Jail - Hospital Out-Patient 1,950.34 452.81
05 Jail - Lab/X-Ray 17,151.68 945.60

Expenditures 27,801.23 10,097.62
Reimb/Adjustments

Grand Total 27,801.23 10,097.62

Source Totals Report Detail
Invoice # Source DOS Amount Billed Amount Paid

INMATE*1200*22 02 05/14/2025 95.00 95.00
INMATE*2775*65 02 04/01/2025 1,597.52 1,597.52
INMATE*2775*66 02 12/01/2024 1,798.48 1,798.48
INMATE*2775*68 02 05/14/2025 85.00 85.00
INMATE*2775*67 02 12/05/2024 147.67 147.67
INMATE*2775*67 02 12/19/2024 81.61 81.61
INMATE*2775*67 02 12/19/2024 238.93 238.93
INMATE*2775*69 02 04/24/2025 580.00 580.00
INMATE*2775*69 02 04/24/2025 490.00 490.00
INMATE*2775*69 02 04/24/2025 540.00 540.00
INMATE*2775*69 02 05/21/2025 140.00 140.00
INMATE*2775*69 02 05/21/2025 895.00 895.00
INMATE*2775*69 02 05/21/2025 940.00 940.00
INMATE*2775*69 02 05/21/2025 305.00 305.00
INMATE*2775*69 02 05/21/2025 580.00 580.00
INMATE*2775*69 02 05/21/2025 185.00 185.00

6 invoices, 16 line items 8,699.21 8,699.21

15572*5814*1 04 09/02/2024 1,213.00 0.00
15572*5814*1 04 09/02/2024 77.00 0.00
89489*3281*1 04 05/30/2025 3.00 0.00
89489*3281*1 04 05/30/2025 657.34 452.81

2 invoices, 4 line items 1,950.34 452.81

8398*2853*3 05 05/29/2025 10,616.03 357.73
88208*3281*2 05 05/23/2025 85.00 10.36
15480*4981*1 05 06/03/2025 150.00 31.93
15480*4981*1 05 06/03/2025 50.00 0.00
8398*2853*2 05 05/31/2025 43.37 13.25
8398*2853*2 05 05/31/2025 475.19 12.67
8398*2853*2 05 05/31/2025 115.02 9.32
8398*2853*2 05 05/31/2025 2,271.76 101.71
8398*2853*2 05 05/31/2025 1,738.38 176.25
88208*3281*1 05 05/23/2025 242.75 12.67
88208*3281*1 05 05/23/2025 161.20 14.96
88208*3281*1 05 05/23/2025 85.91 9.32
88208*3281*1 05 05/23/2025 86.00 19.18



88208*3281*1 05 05/23/2025 1,031.07 176.25

5 invoices, 14 line items 17,151.68 945.60

Grand Totals 27,801.23 10,097.62

13 invoices listed.
34 line items listed.



 
    

 
 

 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

     
          

 
   

    

    

  

                
                

                 
             

       

             

              
       

  

    
     

  

 

  

 



   

  

   

  

    
  

     
    

     
    

  

            
             

              

                 
            

              
             

            
            

  

             
            

  

   
  

     

 

 





   
   

    

 

   

    

   

   

     

     

 

     

        

                   

   

           

               

              

   

   
         

   

  

 
  

              

  

 

 



  
        

    
    

 

 

  

         

   
          

        
         

        
             

       

           
  

          

        
    

  

      
         

          

      
      
        
         

         
      

        
     

   
      

     
      

        
        
          

          
      

         
         

         
          

       
          

      

          
        

           
         

           
        

           
   

        
          

       

              
     

      
          

          
           

        
         
       

          
        

          
        

     

  

       

  

    

    

    

           



 

       

   

  

 
  

 

 
  

   

   

    

 
   

  
 

  

  

 

  
    

  

   
  

   

  
         

    

   
  

 

  
 

 

  

  

   
  

   

    

 
 
  

   

     

   
   
  

 
  

 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 
   

  
  

     

    

  

  
   

      

    

  
  
   

 

       

  
  

    

 
 

 

 

     



    

 

 

  

  

     
     

   
    

 

 
  
    

      

  

               
               

               

             

               
       

 

 

 

  

 

  

  



   

  

 

    
  

      
    

      
    

  

            
             

              
              

           

              
             

             
           

             
 

  

   
  

    

 

 

             
            





   
    

   

  

    

 

  

 

 

   

   

   

     

    

        

              

                  

   

           

               

              

  

  

    

   

   
        



  
        

    
    

    

           

    
  

      
         

          

      
      
        
         

         
      

        
     

   
      

     
      

        
        
          

          
      

         
         

         
          

       
          

      

          
        

         
        

     

            

    

      
             

  

   

   
          

       
         

        
             

       

           
  

          

        
    

          
        

           
         

           
        

          
   

        
          

        

              
     

      
          

          
           

        
         
       

          



  

  

    

   

  

  

   

  



              

    

  

  

 
  

 

 
 
  

  
    

 
   

 
 

  

  

 

  
     

  

   
  

   

   

     

    

         

  

 

  
 

 

  

  
   
  

   

    

 
 

  

  
      

    

     

  

 
  

 

 
 

 
 



    
 

 

 
  
  

  
      

  
  
   

  

     

  
  
   

 

 

 

     



 

   

 

 
 
  

   
   

 
   

  
 

  
  

 

  
     

  

   

  

  

 

   
    

   
  

 

  
 

  

   

   
  

   

    

 
 
  

  
        

   
      

  
 

  

 

 
 
 

 
 

      

     

  

  



 

 
 

  
  

  
     

  
  
  
  

     

  
  
  
  

 

 

      



                

  

  

   

 

 
 

  
  

   

 
   

 
 

  
  

 

  
   

  

  
 
  

  
    

    

     

  

 

   

 

 

  

   

   
  

   

    

 
 
  

  
      

   
   
  

 
  

 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
  
  

  
      

  
  
  
  

     

  
  
  
  

 

 

     



              

     

  

   

 

   

 

 
 
  

   

  
 

   
  

 
  

  

 

  
   

  

   
  

  

  
      

    

   
  

 

  
 

 

  

   

   

  
   

    

 
 
  
  

     

    

    

  
 

  

 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
  
  

  
     

  
    

  
  

     

  
    

  
  

 

 

     



    

      

  

  

 
   

 

 

   

  
   

   

 
   

  
 

  
  

 

  
   

  

   

  

  

 

   

    

       

  

 

  
 

  

  
   
  

   

    

 
 
  

      

     

    

   
  

 
  

 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
  
  

  
     

  
  
   

 

     

  
  
   

 

 

     



          

               

  

   

   

 

 
 
  

  
    

 
   

  
 

  
  

 

  

      

  

  
  

   

  
   
    

   
  

 

  
 

 

  

  
   
  

   

    

 
 
  

  
      

   
    

  

 
  

 

 
 
 

 



 

 
 

  
  

  
    

  
    

  
  

    

  
    

  
  

 

 

     



             

     

  

  

 

   

 

 
 

  
  

     

 
   

  
 

  
  

 

  
     

  

  
  

    

 

   
    

   
  

 

  
 

 

  

  
   
  

   

    

 
 
  

  
   

    

    

  

 
  

 

 
 

 
 



  

 

 
 

  
  

  
    

  
    

   

  

     

  
    

  
  

 

 

     



              

     

  

  

 

    

 

 
  

  

  
   

 
   

  
 

  

  

 

  
   

  

   

  

  

 

   
    

   

  

 

  
 

 

  

  
   
  

   

    

 
 
  

  
       

    

      

  
 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 



  
 

 

 
  
  

  
    

  
  
  
  

     

  
  
  
  

 

 

     



                

   

  

 
  

 

 
 
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

  

  

 

  
   

  

  
  

  

 
   
    
        

  

 

   

 
 

  

  
   
  

   

    

  

 
  
   

      

   
   
  

 
  

 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 

  
  

  
      

  
    

   

  

      

  
    

  
  

 

 

     



 

   

 

 
 

  

   

    

 
   

  
 

  
  

 

  
 

  

   
   
  

   

    

 
  

  
    

   
   

  
 

  

 

 
 
 

 
 

     

  

  

      

  
        

  

  
  

  

  
        

    

        

  

 



   

 

 

 
  
  

  
     

  
  
  
  

     

  
  
  
  

 

 

     







































    

 

   

  

  

 

 

 

 



 

      
     

           
         

  

      

     
       

 
        

     
        
      

  

     
       

          
       

       

          

      
           

  



       
      

        

      

         















        
      

   

          

   

    

  

 
  



    

  

  

 

  

 

 

   
        

 

     
       

    

             
  

 

                
               

         

                 
                

                

              
     

    

 

     
     

  

  
   



   
      

  
  

 

  

  
    

   
       

        
            

   
            

   

  

 
             

 
        

     

  

     

   

    

       

     

 

  



  

         

       

   

           

   

 

 

   

  

  

  

  

 







 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-56 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MANAGER TO TAKE ALL 
NECESSARY ACTIONS TO FACILITATE PARTICIPATION IN OPIOID 

LITIGATION SETTLEMENTS, AND RATIFYING PRIOR ACTIONS 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County met in a duly noticed regular 
meeting on July 15, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. in the Sierra County Administration Building, 1712 North 
Date Street, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901; and 

WHEREAS, Sierra County has been significantly affected by the nationwide opioid epidemic, 
which has resulted in loss of life, widespread addiction, increased public health and safety costs, 
and substantial harm to the community; and 

WHEREAS, the County has participated in national litigation efforts aimed at holding 
manufacturers, distributors, and producers of opioids accountable for the consequences of their 
conduct; and 

WHEREAS, those efforts have resulted in significant settlement agreements, including the Purdue 
Pharma bankruptcy and Sackler family settlement totaling approximately $8 billion, requiring a 
vote on the Purdue Plan and execution of a Governmental Entity Settlement Agreement (“GESA”), 
and settlements with nine additional defendants, including Alvogen, Amneal, Apotex, Hikma, 
Indivior, Mylan, Sun Pharma, Zydus, and Sandoz, totaling approximately $1.2 billion in combined 
monetary and non-monetary relief; and 

WHEREAS, participation in these settlements requires timely action by local governments, and 
the Board desires to ensure that the County Manager is fully authorized to carry out any necessary 
steps to complete such participation and secure the County’s share of settlement proceeds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that such actions are in the best interest of the County and its 
residents, and that securing these funds will support critical programs to address the ongoing 
impacts of the opioid epidemic; and 



WHEREAS, the Board also desires to ratify any prior actions taken by the County Manager in 
furtherance of the County’s participation in such claims and settlements; and 

WHEREAS, the County participates in the Opioid Remediation Collaborative of New Mexico, 
which reviews and approves projects for the expenditure of opioid litigation proceeds consistent 
with the terms of the national settlements and applicable law. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra 
County, New Mexico, that the County Manager is hereby authorized and directed to take all actions 
necessary to ensure the County’s participation in all applicable opioid-related settlements, 
including but not limited to voting to approve the Purdue Pharma Plan; executing the 
Governmental Entity Settlement Agreement (GESA); executing participation forms for 
settlements with the above-named defendants; and transmitting such materials by applicable 
deadlines and through appropriate means, including email, DocuSign, or secure web portals. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Manager is further 
authorized to make all certifications, representations, and assurances necessary to confirm the 
County’s participation in settlement processes and to secure and expend opioid litigation proceeds 
for the purpose of opioid abatement, treatment, and prevention. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board hereby ratifies and 
confirms all actions previously taken by the County Manager relating to the County’s participation 
in opioid-related claims, litigation, and settlement processes. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 15th day of July, 2025. 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
__________________________________            ______________________________________ 
              Travis Day, Chairman                                   James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

( 





 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY OF JULY 2025. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO  
  
 
    ____________________________ 
ATTEST:    TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
     ____________________________ 
    HANK HOPKINS COMMISSIONER 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________ 
AMY WHITEHEAD, COUNTY CLERK  JAMES PAXON, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
 
 
 
 





406-70-2870 
COUNTY SUPP 
MEDICAID -24,745.11 24,745.11 0.00 Adj. to clear the negative balance 

406-70-2872 
SAFETY NET CARE 
POOL -93,326.84 93,326.84 0.00 Adj. to clear the negative balance 

406-70-2873 
INDIGENT HOSPITAL 
CLAIMS -31,057.67 31,057.67 0.00 Adj. to clear the negative balance 

509-38-2106 CONTRACT SERVICES -7,458.98 7,458.98 0.00 Adj. to clear the negative balance 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY OF JULY 2025. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO  
  
 
    ____________________________ 
ATTEST:    TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
    ____________________________ 
    HANK HOPKINS COMMISSIONER 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________ 
AMY WHITEHEAD, COUNTY CLERK  JAMES PAXON, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Resolution No.  2025-59 
 

FY25 - FOURTH QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT ENDING JUNE 30, 2025 
 

Whereas, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners met upon notice of meeting duly 
published at the Sierra County Administration Building, 1712 N. Date St, Truth or 
Consequences, New Mexico 87901 on July 15, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. as required by law; and, 
 
Whereas, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Sierra has developed a 
budget for fiscal year 2024-2025; and 
 
Whereas, the final quarterly report has been reviewed and approved to ensure accuracy of 
the beginning balances used on the FY 2025 budget; and,   
 
Whereas, it is hereby certified that the contents in this report are true and correct to the best 
of our knowledge and that this report depicts all funds for fiscal year 2025; and, 
 
Now, Therefore Be lt Resolved, by the Board of County Commissioners of the County of 
Sierra hereby approves the final quarterly report for FY 2025 hereinafter descripted as 
Attachment “A” and respectfully requests approval from the Local Government Division of 
the Department of Finance and Administration. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY OF JULY 2025. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO  
  
 
    ____________________________ 
    TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
JAMES PAXON, COMMISSIONER  HANK HOPKINS COMMISSIONER 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Amy Whitehead 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

 Joshua Baker 
County Sheriff 
575-894-9150 

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 

James Paxon 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Travis Day 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Amber Vaughn, County Manager 
575-894-6215 voice 575-894-9548 fax 

 

1712 N. Date, Suite D 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 

 



 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________   
AMY WHITEHEAD, COUNTY CLERK   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Resolution No.  2025-60 

 
FY26 - A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2026 FINAL BUDGET 

 
Whereas, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners met upon notice of meeting duly 
published at the Sierra County Administration Building, 1712 N. Date St, Truth or 
Consequences, New Mexico 87901 on July 15, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. as required by law; and, 
 
Whereas, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Sierra exercises the powers 
of the County as a body politic and corporate pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-1(1884); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, has held public hearings for 
the purpose of receiving comments and requests for the budget. 
 
Now, Therefore Be lt Resolved, that the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County 
approves the attached final budget as presented. 
 
Now, Therefore Be lt Further Resolved, by the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra 
County to forward the budget to the Department of Finance and Administration for the final 
State Approval. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY OF JULY 2025. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO  
  
 
    ____________________________ 
    TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
JAMES PAXON, COMMISSIONER   HANK HOPKINS COMMISSIONER 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Amy Whitehead 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

 Joshua Baker 
County Sheriff 
575-894-9150 

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 

James Paxon 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Travis Day 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Amber Vaughn, County Manager 
575-894-6215 voice 575-894-9548 fax 

 

1712 N. Date, Suite D 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 

 



   
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________   
AMY WHITEHEAD, COUNTY CLERK   
 
 
 
 
 
 



         
   

 

  

 

 
  

  
  

   
   

  
  

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
    

  
  

  

 
  

     

  
  

 

 
 

  
 

   

 
 

  
 

 



         
   

 
 

 

 

    

  
  

 
        

  
  

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
  
  

  
  

   


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
	A. Regular Meeting-June 24, 2025

	CONSENT AGENDA
	A. Resolution No. 2025-54 AP
	B. Resolution No. 2025-55
	C. Indigent Burial B2025-014
	D. Indigent Burial B2025-015
	E. Claim of Exemption 25-002 Smith 
	F. Lodgers Tax Recommendation 

	BOARD OF FINANCE
	A. June Reconciliation 

	NEW BUSINESS
	A. Approval of Donation, Rubber Tire Roller 

	RESOLUTIONS-ORDINANCES-PROCLAMATIONS
	A. Resolution No. 2025-56
	B. REsolution No. 2025-57
	C. Resolution No. 2025-58
	D. Resolution No. 2025-59
	E. Resolution No. 2025-60


